
 

 
1 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 
MONDAY, 5 FEBRUARY 2024 AT 6.00 PM 
 
COUNCIL CHAMBER - THE GUILDHALL, PORTSMOUTH 
 
Telephone enquiries to James Harris on 023 9260 6065 
Email: james.harris@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
 
If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact named above. 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor Cal Corkery (Chair) 
Councillor Leo Madden (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Matthew Atkins 
Councillor Peter Candlish 
Councillor Lewis Gosling 
 

Councillor Graham Heaney 
Councillor Abdul Kadir 
Councillor Emily Strudwick 
Councillor Mary Vallely 
 

 
Standing Deputies 
 
Councillor Chris Attwell 
Councillor Simon Bosher 
Councillor Stuart Brown 
Councillor George Fielding 
 

Councillor Charlotte Gerada 
Councillor Mark Jeffery 
Councillor George Madgwick 
Councillor Daniel Wemyss 
 

 
(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.) 
 
Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website:  www.portsmouth.gov.uk 
 
 

A G E N D A 
  
 1   Apologies for Absence  

  
 2   Declarations of Members' Interests  

 

Public Document Pack



 
2 

 

 
 3   Minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2023 (Pages 5 - 6) 

 

  RECOMMENDED that the minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2023 
be confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

 
 
 4   Updates on scrutiny recommendations upheld by Cabinet in 2023 (Pages 

7 - 20) 
 

  The panel will receive updates on progress made in the respect of 
implementing the recommendations of the below reviews: 
  
     Housing & Social Care Scrutiny Panel - Review of Provision of breaks / 

respite for carers (recommendations agreed by Cabinet on 27 June 2023); 
and 

  
     Economic Development, Culture & Leisure Scrutiny Panel - Review of 

Engagement with Culture and Leisure (recommendations agreed by 
Cabinet on 27 June 2023)  

  
Verbal updates will be provided by the relevant cabinet members, with the 
update on the Review of Engagement with Culture and Leisure supplemented 
by the attached written report. 

 
 5   Overview of Portsmouth City Council Budget and Council Tax 2024/25 

and Medium Term Budget Forecast 2025/26 to 2027/28  
 

  (Information only Item) 
  
An overview of the budget will be provided by Mr Chris Ward, s151 Officer. 
  
An opportunity will be given to the panel to ask questions. 
  
The panel may also put forward for consideration at Cabinet any collective 
comments. 
  
Members are advised that the budget papers will be included in the agenda 
for the 6 February 2024 Cabinet meeting and are expected to be published on 
29 January 2024 when they will be available to view on the Council's website 
via the following link: 
  
Agenda for Cabinet on Tuesday, 6th February, 2024, 2.30 pm Portsmouth City 
Council 

 

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MId=5353
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MId=5353
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MId=5530
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MId=5530


 
3 

 

 6   Review into the use of 'Systems Thinking' within Portsmouth City 
Council (Pages 21 - 58) 
 

  RECOMMENDED that the panel considers and approves the report from the 
Task & Finish Group and submits it to Cabinet for consideration. 
 
 

Members of the public are permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social media 
during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting nor records those 
stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at 
meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the 
meeting's venue. 
 
Whilst every effort will be made to webcast this meeting, should technical or other difficulties 
occur, the meeting will continue without being webcast via the Council's website. 
 
This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the Council's YouTube account at: 
Portsmouth City Council - Democratic Services - YouTube  

https://www.youtube.com/@PCC-DemocraticServices


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
1 

 

SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Scrutiny Management Panel held on Thursday, 
14 September 2023 at 5.30 pm in the Executive Meeting Room, Portsmouth 
Guildhall. 
 

Present 
 

 Councillor Cal Corkery (in the Chair) 
 

Councillors Leo Madden 
Lewis Gosling 
Graham Heaney 
Abdul Kadir 
Emily Strudwick 
Mary Vallely 

 
14. Apologies for Absence (AI 1) 

 
No apologies for absence had been received.  
 

15. Declarations of Members' Interests (AI 2) 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

16. Minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2023 (AI 3) 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2023 were confirmed and signed 
as an accurate record. 
 

17. Review of actions following the LGA Peer Review (AI 4) 
 
Following a request made at the previous meeting, the panel received a report 
which provided an update on the actions following the corporate peer 
challenge that took place in October 2001. 
  
In introducing the report, the Director of Corporate Services explained that 
good progress has been made and that the actions detailed now formed the 
'business as usual' operation of the council. 
  
During the discussion, members referenced the amber rating for the review of 
the constitution.  The City Solicitor explained that the council had 
commissioned a third party to undertake this task and due to structural 
changes they had only completed one third of the work, namely the evidence 
gathering and subsequent review. The findings had however not been 
reported back to the council.  Due to a lack of further contact from the third 
party it was suspected that the remainder of the work would need to be 
completed in-house by the council. 
  
The importance of Equality and Diversity training was highlighted by a panel 
member, as it was felt that the undertaking of this would have gone some way 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

to mitigate the apparent feel of unease displayed by some members and 
officers at a recent vigil.  In reply, the Director of Corporate Services 
confirmed that this training was available for all members and that whilst the 
Council had come a long way there remained work to do.  To this end, a draft 
strategy would be considered by Cabinet in October 2023. 
  
The panel asked how non Cabinet members were being engaged in respect 
of the first action ' Create more time and space for collective reflection and 
long-term planning for the future (members, senior officers and then jointly)'. 
  
In reply, the Director of Corporate Services confirmed that there was a great 
focus on cross party working groups and cited the Local Plan and Civic offices 
Working Groups as examples. 
  
Following the discussion it was RESOLVED that the update report be 
NOTED. 
 

18. Consideration and agreement of the draft scoping document for the 
scrutiny item 'The use of Systems Thinking within Portsmouth City 
Council' (AI 5) 
 
The panel discussed the draft Scoping Document for the review which had 
been previously circulated. 
  
During the discussion the panel was advised that systems thinking had been 
in place at the council for many years, although it had evolved over time and it 
had proven useful where processes required reviewing.  The work was 
undertaken by those services who requested it and to date the team had not 
come across any services where the methodology could not be applied.  
  
As an amendment the panel agreed to add the word 'outcomes' to the second 
bullet under 'purpose of the enquiry' in the scoping document so that it reads: 
  

       The methodology employed within PCC - to include an explanation of 
interventions, how they work and outcomes. 

  
The panel agreed to progress the review via a task and finish group open to 
all members of the SMP.  The review to conclude and the final report to be 
considered by the SMP in January 2024. 
  
Following the discussion it was RESOLVED that the draft Scoping 
Document, as amended be agreed. 
 
The meeting concluded at 6.15 pm. 
 
 
  

Councillor Cal Corkery 
Chair 

 

 

Page 6



 

- Official -

Progress update on Economic Development Culture & Leisure Scrutiny panel 

Engagement with culture and leisure - widening social participation in Portsmouth 

January 2024 

This report provides an update on the Economic Development Culture and Leisure (EDCL) 
Scrutiny Panel's recommendations arising from a review into the engagement with culture 
and leisure to widen social participation in Portsmouth. 

Background 

On 18 September 2019, Scrutiny Management Panel prioritised the topic 'Engagement with 
culture and leisure - widening social participation in Portsmouth'.  The review commenced 
with meetings on 20 January 2020 and 25 February 2020 but further meetings were put on 
hold due to the pandemic. 

The review recommenced on 12 January 2023, with further meetings on 30 January, 9 
February and 13 March 2023. 

The Panel received wide ranging evidence from both internal and external stakeholders (full 
details included in the Cabinet report dated 27 June 20231).  

The Scrutiny Panel's recommendations were incorporated into a report dated 24 March 2023 
(appended to the Cabinet report dated 27 June 2023). 

The Scrutiny Panel made 17 recommendations, with further responses to additional points of 
relevance. 

Progress to date 

The following section highlights the key progress made for each recommendation as at 
January 2024.  

 Recommendation Update on progress 
 

1.  Consider greater 
advertising of the 
Portsmouth Leisure 
Card. 

As set out in the report of June 2023, the Leisure Card is 
advertised extensively across different services and 
partners without a marketing budget. 
 
To increase reach, during the course of 2023 (and into 
2024) the card has been (and will continue to be) 
advertised via additional routes as follows: Education 
BookBags, Foster Carers Newsflash, HouseTalk and BH 
Live Sports Development Outreach team. 
 
In collaboration with BH Live the service have produced 
an A1 poster series for Leisure Card which is being 
advertised across the city. 
 
Going forward the service are looking at developing a 
newsletter with the support of the marketing team. 
 
Meetings have also been held with relevant stakeholders 
in key target areas of the city via providers of sheltered 

 
1 Agenda for Cabinet on Tuesday, 27th June, 2023, 2.00 pm Portsmouth City Council 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MId=5352&Ver=4


 

- Official -

housing, community centres and hubs together with City 
of Sanctuary and community leaders. 
 

2.  Review and update the 
eligibility criteria. 

The eligibility criteria is regularly reviewed with the 
Council's Tackling Poverty Officer to make sure it is up to 
date.   
It is not possible to expand eligibility without further 
funding to relevant affected services. 
 

3.  Reviews the places the 
Leisure Card can be 
accepted with greater 
engagement with 
culture and leisure  

This was actioned in Spring 2023 following extensive 
engagement with providers across the city.   
10 new providers came on board. 
Since then, further engagement has led to an additional 
leisure provider joining the scheme. 
The review with potential providers is ongoing. 
 

4.  Creates a webpage for 
listing Leisure Card 
participating partners. 

This was already in existence prior to the review.  Digital 
applications have also been available (in addition to paper 
applications) since 2022. 
  

5.  Increases the number 
of Children We Care 
For and Foster Carers 
who are aware of and 
take up Leisure Card. 

The service has reached out regularly to the Children We 
Care For team (including Fostering).  Numbers for this 
cohort have risen over 200% since 2020, although from a 
small base. 
 
The service is also now advertising in Foster Carers 
Newsflash (see point 1) to increase this cohort. 
 

6.  Reinstates the reports 
from the Audience 
Agency project to 
increase demographic 
knowledge on 
engagement with 
culture & leisure 

Audience Agency working has moved on since the last of 
the detailed reports was undertaken and there is a 
considerable amount of audience data, specifically 
designed for cultural organisations and data reports 
available directly from Audience Agency which can then 
be tailored to organisational need. 
 
Detailed Audience Spectrum information, along with 
national cultural participation monitoring is regularly 
updated and free of charge.  Nominal fees are charged for 
bespoke reports and other opportunities such as 
collaboration with their wide-ranging cultural networks. 

7.  Congratulates the 
Kings Theatre on their 
work with different 
ethnic groups and 
dementia groups 

The Kings Theatre continue to work with a wide range of 
different community groups in innovative ways seeking to 
make culture accessible. 
 
Most recent initiatives have included a new partnership 
with First Bus offering a special ‘5 for £5’ on bus tickets for 
family groups attending the pantomime using a service 
which stretched from the north of the city right to the 
theatre’s main entrance. 
 
The Kings Theatre Arts Academy are also currently 
encouraging community members for their new show 
choir ‘Resonate’ with auditions being held imminently. 

Page 8



 

- Official -

8.  Congratulates the 
Groundlings Theatre for 
their work with the 
Detectives 

In a similar way to the Kings Theatre, Groundlings have 
continued to develop and strengthen their community links 
with a particular focus on their immediate neighbourhoods 
in Portsea.  Developing their youth theatre groups they 
have provided routes for performance both in their venue 
but also in collaboration with other cultural organisations 
such as Victorious Festival. 

9.  Congratulates the 
Guildhall Trust on their 
work with schools 

It is worth highlighting that work to transform the 
basement of Portsmouth Guildhall into an exciting, new 
creative space for young people and to redevelop the 
venue’s main customer toilets began in October. 
 
The £1.3million project will see the main basement area 
and associated rooms remodelled to provide an innovative 
space where young people aged 11-25 will be able to 
meet and explore their creative potential. 
 
The welcoming and safe space, to be named The Base, 
will open in late Spring 2024 as one of the most unique 
and innovative creative facilities in the country, giving 
young people access to a band rehearsal room with 
backline equipment, a small studio with a DJ mixing 
space, a large AV suite with specialist software, a small 
performance space and a lounge/exhibition area.   
 
Collaborating with schools, colleges and cultural partners 
from across the region, The Base will be a catalyst for 
creativity and collaboration, with specialist programmes 
and workshops delivered by some of the foremost 
practitioners in the sector to support young people in 
achieving their objectives.       
 
Post pandemic it is widely reported that young people 
have become more disengaged and isolated with 1 in 4 
suffering heightened anxiety and poor mental health. The 
Base will remove barriers to engagement and offer a 
nurturing environment for all, including students and 
young people from low-income families and under-
represented groups.      
 
Engaged in the project since its inception, young people 
have informed the design and facilities that The Base will 
offer, and now a larger Youth Advisory Panel is being 
established that will continue the development and 
creation of the space.  
 
The majority of funding for the project is from Portsmouth 
City Council and Arts Council England. 
 

10.  Returns the price of the 
piano hire in Central 
Library to its previous 
price 

This was not recommended following the presentation of 
the ‘Library and Archive Service Charges’ report to 
Culture, Leisure and Economic Development Committee 
17/03/23 in which increases were ‘agreed and 

Page 9



 

- Official -

implemented from 1st April 2023, in order to ensure full 
cost recovery of these services’. 
 

11.  Congratulates the 
Library Service for the 
removal of fees and 
fines 

Portsmouth was one of the first library authorities to 
remove fines for late return of books in 2018.  For many 
years previously, no fines and reservation fees had been 
charged to children but adults were still subject to fines 
and reservation charges for items on loan to other 
customers or on the shelves at other libraries in the city. 
  
The cost of administering fines was outweighing the 
income generated from fines and the process of 
penalising customers was increasingly becoming a 
negative experience for customers and staff and another 
barrier to library usage as those customers, often on low 
incomes and facing a large fines bill, were unlikely to 
return.  
 
Following the pandemic an increasing number of library 
authorities have gone ‘fines free’.  
 

12.  Keeps all library 
buildings open to the 
public as they are an 
essential space 

Residents of Portsmouth continue to enjoy access to a 
comprehensive library offer across the city.  They are 
essential community hubs and a key provider of low or no 
cost activities for people of all ages, backgrounds and 
cultures.  The cost of living crisis has furthermore made 
libraries a key venue in the ‘Warm Spaces’ campaign.  No 
one is more than a twenty-minute walk from one of nine 
branch libraries.   
 

13.  Repairs the moving 
floor of the Mountbatten 
Swimming Pool which 
is a key feature for 
accessibility 

As previously reported officers can confirm that access to 
the pool is currently not impacted despite the moveable 
floor not being operational, it is fixed at a depth that allows 
a comprehensive swimming programme to be delivered 
including activities such as learn to swim, school  
swimming, aqua aerobics, family swimming and general 
casual use together with a competition standard 25 m pool 
which can be used by competent swimmers and local 
clubs.  
 
Although the moveable floor is not currently operational a 
solution has been found to allow the boom to move in 
isolation so also allowing 50m galas and training to be 
hosted.  
 
Officers can also confirm that the pool is fully accessible 
for the disabled with specialist changing facilities and 
hoists allowing access. In addition in the last couple of 
years access into the pool has also been improved with 
the installation of some new steps with a gradual gradient 
that allow those with mobility issues to enter the pool. 
 

Page 10



 

- Official -

As part of required lifecycle maintenance requirements the 
pool will need to be refurbished in approximately 3 years' 
time in 2027 and it is intended that at that point options be 
considered on the provision and installation of a moveable 
floor if required, until then the pool remains fully 
accessible. 
 

14.  Supports the mobile 
library service 

Locations furthest from our 9 branch libraries are served 
by a mobile library. By the end of March 2024, there will 
be two electric ‘tuk tuks’, supplied with funding from Arts 
Council England. These will be able to promote library 
services in school playgrounds, local parks, the seafront 
and local high streets. 
 

15.  Considers the 
installation of new 
facilities in the north & 
north-west of the city 

Whilst no specific new facilities have been installed in the 
north and north-west of the city since this report was 
published a range of projects have been hosted in this 
geographical area of the city. 
 
Following on from the very successful We Shine in 
November 2022 with hubs in both Hilsea and Paulsgrove 
further activity, such as the Live at the Bandstand on Tour 
programme and a new youth theatre initiative by 
Chichester Festival Theatre have been devised for this 
area of the city.    

16.  Creates a cultural 
network 

The funding of Portsmouth Creates is primarily to support 
and further develop cultural networks right across the city 
and into the sub-region. 
 
Our funding recently resulted in a successful bid by 
Portsmouth Creates to Arts Council England leveraging in 
£650,000 over three years.  This Place Partnership 
funding, along with core funding from the founding 
partners including PCC will drive an ambitious programme 
to drive growth, develop talent and improve inclusivity in 
the cultural sector.  Further iterations of the successful We 
Shine event are planned for 2024 and 2026 with a 
literature focus to their work for 2025. 
 

17.  Welcomes the creation 
of the Museums Trail.  
Recommends it is 
extended to other 
cultural premises 

The Tourism Team completed the Old Portsmouth Kids 
Guide along with a new Millennium Trail Guide to 
complement the updated panels along the walk. Both are 
available at Information Points in the city.  
 

18.  Access, health and 
wellbeing as provided 
by Museums Service 

Many volunteer roles are referrals from the HIVE to 
support people back into work and benefit their mental 
health.  
Changing places toilets are being installed at Portsmouth 
Museum in February, audio guides have been recently 
updated at D-Day Story. 

19.  Outreach activity 
provided by Museums 
Service 

The service is reaching out to communities in the North of 
the city through a programme of pop-up museums. The 
first one will open in February in Cosham Library. The 

Page 11



 

- Official -

“Finding their voice” project engaged dozens of young 
people across the city. 

20.  Volunteering offer by 
Museums Service 

The Museum Service offers a range of volunteering 
opportunities in collections/ research/ public engagement/ 
front of house roles. There are 80 active volunteers 
currently. Recently the team of LCT7074 volunteers won 
the prestigious Marsh Volunteers for museum learning 
Award (British Museum).  

21.  Contribution of Conan 
Doyle collection to 
widening access to 
culture 

We are continuing to work with Conan Doyle 'Detective' 
volunteers to deliver community based interactions that 
allow access and publicise and utilise the Conan Doyle 
Collection to local and international audiences. 

22.  Contribution of Arts 
Council England project 
towards access to 
culture & leisure 

The ACE funded Volunteer Futures project has been 
developed to improve the retention and sustainability of 
volunteers engaging with PCC Cultural Services internally 
and externally. The project aims to support individuals 
with additional support needs who may face barriers to 
volunteering such as asylum seekers and refugees, the 
homeless, and those with disabilities (both physical and 
learning), learning difficulties, and other groups. Overall, 
the project seeks to improve the accessibility and diversity 
of volunteering.  
 
At the time of writing, 557 volunteers have been engaged 
and supported (the original project target was 500). 

23.  Contribution of seafront 
to health and wellbeing 

The seafront continues to support many different users 
and we encourage as much use of this shared public 
space as possible.   
 
Recent new initiatives have included hosting the 
European Kite foiling Championships which had an 
extensive education programme encouraging young 
people to excitingly engage with the seafront in a safe 
environment. 
 
We continue to support a seasonal service by the RNLI to 
encourage sea swimming and continue to have a 
designated swim area marked off by buoys.  We have 
worked with partners to accommodate other regular 
activities as the coastal defence works have moved to 
different areas and activities such as Park Run have been 
able to continue with minimal disruption. 

24.  Contribution of 
Libraries Service to 
access to culture and 
leisure 

The Library and Archive Service makes a significant 
impact on access by providing regular opportunities for 
people of all backgrounds, abilities and cultures to take 
part in leisure and cultural activities.  Many of these are 
provided free of charge to the customer or at very low cost 
and at a range of easily accessible venues.  As well as 
providing books, eBooks and eAudio books to customers, 
libraries provide access to online newspapers, magazines, 
free music downloads and streaming.  For those that 
cannot get online at home, libraries provide free internet 
access and informal IT learning opportunities.  Many 

Page 12



 

- Official -

activities are provided throughout the year that encourage 
participation in culture and creativity, including the annual 
literary festival, BookFest, which takes place in Feb/Mar 
for children and adults; the Summer Reading Challenge; 
regular rhymetimes and storytimes for babies, toddlers 
and young children and school holiday activities for 
families.  There are many adult reading groups supported 
by libraries and other informal activities such as board 
games and social groups take place in the venues. 
 
The library outreach team oversees the books at home 
service to residents who cannot easily get to libraries and 
there is a comprehensive offer to children and adults with 
vision impairments.  

25.  BH Live Sports 
Development 
programme contribution 
to access to leisure, 
health & wellbeing 

In 2023 BH Live provided a Social Value benefit to 
Portsmouth of in the region of £7m compared to £6.4m 
the year before. The social value calculation gives insight 
to the value in community savings generated across four 
key areas; Health Care, Education, Wellbeing and Crime. 
 
Some of the highlights delivered by the BH Live team 
during 2023 include: 

• Working with the PCC Wellbeing Team to provide 
membership to their Healthy Weight programmes 
across the city. At the end of the year there were 
approximately 50 participants with half taking up a 
two month fitness membership offer.  

• They had total of 401 members sign-up to their GP 
Referral Schemes in 2023, with 310 current active 
members. 

• BH Live completed a grand total of 1917 exercise 
referral appointments throughout the year across 
all of their schemes. These appointments consist 
of initial assessments, programmes, exercise 
sessions, mid and final appointments.  

• BH Live deliver a number of additional 
programmes including: 

• Stroke Referral Scheme – a maintenance 
programme for those who have suffered a stroke. 
The scheme delivers gym sessions, Stroke swim 
and seated chair classes. 

• Cardiac Rehabilitation Phase 4 – BH Live run 2 
maintenance classes for those who have suffered 
a cardiac event and are wanting to improve their 
fitness. They also provide gym programmes for 
those who want to progress. 

• COPD (Chronic Disruptive Pulmonary Disease) 
Maintenance classes – BH Live currently run 2 
classes at the Mountbatten Centre and 2 classes 
at the Pyramids Centre for COPD members.  

• Parkinson’s Sessions – BH Live currently run a 2hr 
supervised gym session weekly, an aqua/swim 

Page 13



 

- Official -

session and a tailored circuit class all aimed at 
those with Parkinson’s Disease.  

• Cancer Pre-hab – BH Live are working with 
Southampton Hospital to deliver pre-habilitation for 
those that are to undergo major surgery and are 
needing to gain a higher level of fitness to increase 
the chance of success.  

Female 
• BH Live was engaged in supporting the 

development of a series of women and girls’ 
seminars to improve health and build confidence, 
with a role out planned for 2024. 

• A female only gym session has been planned to 
build on the female only swim offer at Charter 
Community Sports Centre. 

• Opportunities have been identified that map to 
national initiatives as well as feedback to local 
community engagement. Safe space running for 
females utilising the track, and baby sling fit class 
are current opportunities. 

Low Income 
• Further push of the PCC leisure card is having a 

positive impact and identifying more opportunities 
to promote through stakeholder relationships both 
internally & externally. 

• Promotion of the leisure card across BH Live sites 
as well as supporting the promotion across the city 
has seen a rise in the number of users across BH 
Live sites.  

Minority groups 
• Partnering with PCC social care who have care 

responsibilities for unaccompanied minors (asylum 
seekers) to engage in gym, swim, and active 
opportunities. 

• Specific HAF delivery in partnership with City of 
Sanctuary saw BH Live build on early engagement 
of how they further support those seeking asylum 
in Portsmouth. 

• Partnering with local faith group Oasis of Love to 
support engagement for their members to engage 
in active lifestyle activity. This includes a youth 
programme of 6 weeks over the summer holidays 
to finish with a family sports festival at the 
Mountbatten Centre. 

Disability  
• A partnership is ongoing with Cliffdale Primary 

School and Redwood School for pupils to access 
BH live venues to deliver on opportunities to be 
more active through sport as well as through play 
at Exploria. The Pyramids party rooms can be 
used as an ideal set of classrooms and then also 
give young people more access to Exploria soft 
play. 

Page 14



 

- Official -

• Creative Advances delivery was a huge success 
and subject to finding further funding BH Live 
hopes to continue to engage this organisation in 
supporting more adults with disabilities. 

• Following community engagement BH Live have 
been asked to deliver some after school style 
activity to support young people with Special 
needs. 

• BH Live maintain a comprehensive and all-
encompassing disability tennis programme which 
is considered one of the most inclusive in the 
region. Their commitment to inclusivity is evident 
through their extensive offerings, including 2 
weekly Headway sessions for those recovering 
from head injuries, a weekly Downs Syndrome 
Active session and partnerships with Harbour 
School for children with special needs. BH Live 
have a close collaboration with Hampshire & IOW 
disability and the LTA.  

• Level Water continue to part fund 1-2-1 swimming 
lessons for children with physical disabilities, they 
currently have 12 swimmers per week accessing 
lessons at Mountbatten through this scheme and 
have integrated 3 disabled swimmers into their 
regular classes.  

Over 50's 
• 'TOFF' (The Over Fifty Fives) delivery has a good 

mix of activity, the membership continues to grow 
and BH Live  have a good relationship with the 
group. They have now moved to Wimbledon Park.  

• A Nordic walking / fitness instructor is now in place 
and trained which is a huge positive to deliver an 
often-requested activity across the city. 

• Walking Netball and Walking Football are still 
popular and happen on Monday morning and 
evening respectively. 

Interaction (Program for the Recovering Mentally Ill) 
• There are currently approximately 200 members 

on the scheme with an average monthly 
attendance at sessions of in the region of 280 
which is a noticeable increase from the previous 
year. 88 members are actively taking part in at 
least 1 session per week. 

• Portsmouth Interaction provide activities in the 
community and the BH Live centres to bridge the 
gap between the hospitals and their scheme. This 
links into the referral scheme and has paved way 
for the St James project in which they deliver 
exercise on the wards. 

Tennis 
• BH Live are proud to report a growth of over 10% 

in the player numbers for the year 2023 with 
approximately 300 currently on a development 
course. 

Page 15



 

- Official -

• BH Live's partnership with Mayfield School 
remains strong as they utilize the tennis facilities 
for curricular activities 2-3 days every week. 
During the summer term, BH Live delivered a 10-
week training program in collaboration with Corpus 
Christi working with all year groups. Additionally, in 
early October, they hosted a school’s roadshow 
offering FREE tennis sessions to 10 local schools 
for 5 consecutive days. 

• In September 2023, with spaces at Portsmouth 
Tennis Centre limited they decided to expand their 
programme further and created a small tennis 
programme at Charter Community Sports Centre. 
This programme operates on Monday and Friday 
evenings.  

Gymnastics 
• Record number of pre-school gymnasts accessing 

gymnastics classes, the Portsmouth Gymnastics 
Centre had nearly 400 per week prior to the 2023 
summer holidays. The programme now offers 18 
classes per week with the addition of gym play this 
year which helps boosts under 5’s membership.  

• All classes are full within the recreational 
programme, with alert lists and with the addition of 
RISE gymnastics award scheme meaning a clear 
and fun progression to retain members and link 
with British Gymnastics.  

• A big change within the programme happened last 
year with the addition of an advanced squad which 
bridges the gap between recreational and 
performance level gymnastics.  

• The Portsmouth Gymnastics Centre was used for 
8 large events & competitions in 2023 and over 15 
British Gymnastics Courses were run.  

• The BH Live adult gymnastics squad attended the 
British Adult Championships in August, the team 
were incredibly successful winning 21 British 
medals across women’s, men’s, trampoline, 
tumbling and Acrobatics gymnastics! This 
incredible result has inspired more adults to try 
gymnastics and adult classes are growing and are 
as popular as ever. 

Swimming  
• There are currently in the region of 2100 on the 

learn to swim programme at the Mountbatten 
Centre and 230 at Charter Community Sports 
Centre. In particular BH Live saw a 21% increase 
in swimmers continuing to Stage 7 and beyond. 
Swim Fit classes for those who wish to keep 
swimming but don’t want to join a club have been 
introduced to the programme to keep young 
people in aquatic activity for longer. 

• On average 20 schools attend weekly lessons 
each term with an average of 930 pupils per week. 

Page 16



 

- Official -

• BH Live have also begun supporting Charter 
Academy introduce swimming as a GCSE PE 
option for pupils. 

 Sports & leisure 
infrastructure 

The sports and Leisure infrastructure in Portsmouth is 
provided by a range of organisations – PCC, UoP, MOD, 
schools, colleges, community centres and private 
providers. 
 
In line with the council’s adopted Sports Facility Strategy 
officers are pursuing the development of the city’s facilities 
on two fronts: 

• Replacement of Eastney Swimming Pool with a 
new facility at Bransbury Park. This project is 
progressing, and the next milestone will be a 
planning application in early 2024. The principal 
contractor has been appointed and they will 
assume design responsibility from April 2024. 
Construction is scheduled to start later in the year. 
The facility is due to open in early 2026. This will 
also include a new GP surgery to replace an 
existing nearby facility. 

• Increasing availability of existing sports and leisure 
facilities. Officers are in dialogue with other public 
sector providers in the city (ie UoP, schools, 
MOD). In particular two schools in central 
Portsmouth have large sports facilities that are not 
well-used by the community. Officers are 
supporting these schools to open up their facilities 
to greater community use – expected mid to late 
2024. 

 
The council’s sports and leisure service operates its 
sports and leisure facilities via a contract with a non-profit 
organisation BH Live. Officers commissioned a review of 
the service by two leading leisure consultants. Their 
conclusion was that the service provided by BH Live was 
good. Officers are working with BH Live to develop some 
of the areas for improvement identified by the reports. 
 
The contract with BH Live expires in Feb 2027. Officers 
are engaging with consultants to develop options for the 
service beyond this date. The most likely outcomes will be 
contract extension or re-procurement, although other 
options are not ruled out at this stage (formation of a local 
trust, LATCo, in-house). 

26.  Community centres 
contribution to health & 
wellbeing (Housing) 

The housing managed community centres support the 
delivery of a range of activities and well-being initiatives. 
Recent new additions to the activity programme have 
included karate in Somerstown, football in Paulsgrove, a 
new dance session at Charles Dickens and an LDD 
provision at Cosham.   
  
We will seek to develop our offer and are actively involved 
in Place Shaping activity in Paulsgrove led by PCCs Public 

Page 17



 

- Official -

Health and Corporate Services team and continue to 
engage with residents to understand what they would like 
to see locally. This recent engagement has led to the 
community centre working with the library service to sell 
library books that are no longer issued, which is proving 
popular.  
  
We continue to work closely with partner agencies in each 
locality to promote to residents what is available to them in 
their communities.  
  

27.  Community centres 
contribution to health & 
wellbeing (Culture & 
Leisure) 

The nine community centres in Culture continue to provide 
broad and balanced programmes aimed at all ages and at 
reasonable costs.  
The centres able to do so participated in the Warm 
Spaces initiative last winter and this continues. 
The most recent user survey reports will be available 
shortly, following which the findings will be discussed with 
the committees of trustees. These findings, together with 
the outcomes of the annual SLA monitoring process, 
inform their future development of activities and services. 
All centres are promoting the Leisure Card, having paper 
application forms available for those unable to apply 
online. 
 

28.  Contribution of events 
towards access to 
culture, leisure & 
wellbeing 

The events team continue to organise a range of free to 
access annual large-scale events including the 
International Kite Festival, Live at the Bandstand 
programme of music events, Armed Forces Day and the 
City’s Fireworks display.  
 
The annual events programme remains very popular with 
residents providing a wide range of events to suit a variety 
of tastes and preferences. Attendance figures continued 
to remain high in 2023. 
 
The Bandstand on Tour events worked well in 2023 and it 
is planned to continue with this in 2024 utilising Victoria 
Park and KGV playing field. 
 
The events team continue to encourage and support a 
wide range of community organised events and 
accommodate as many as our open spaces allow. The 
seafront spaces are already fully booked from June to 
September in 2024.   
 
The team fully supports national initiatives and provides 
opportunities for communities to come together to 
celebrate or commemorate. The King’s Coronation was 
marked in 2023 with a programme of street parties and 
community lunch events across the city. In 2024 we will 
work with partners and organisations to stage a 
programme of events to mark the 80th anniversary of the 
D-Day. 

Page 18



 

- Official -

 
 

Next steps 

We will continue to deliver the recommendations set out by the EDCL Scrutiny panel 
together with our work programmes. 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



0 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 
 

Review into the use of 'Systems Thinking'  
within Portsmouth City Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date published:  
 

Scrutiny 
Panel should be considered formally by the Cabinet or the relevant Cabinet 
Member within a period of eight weeks, as required by Rule 11(a) of the Policy 
& Review Procedure Rules. 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



1 
 

PREFACE 
 
This review set out to develop a deeper understanding of the Systems Thinking 
method for reviewing the management and operation of public services as currently 
employed by Portsmouth City Council. As part of that review the panel met with a 
range of senior council officers, staff from services which have previously been 
reviewed and professionals from partner organisations with experience of using the 
Systems Thinking method utilised by the council.  
 
On behalf of the Scrutiny Management Panel I would like to thank all those who 
participated in this review and supported us as elected members to get a better 
insight into Systems Thinking and its use by the local authority to drive forward 
progress and innovation in local public services.  
 
During the review we heard a number of impressive examples of how Systems 
Thinking had been used to improve the services provided by the council, ensuring 
they are high quality, responsive and efficient. The reviews we learned about have 
undoubtedly resulted in better public services in our city.  
 
As part of the review, we identified a number of recommendations for considering 
how the Systems Thinking method and implementation can be further developed, 
ensuring the model empowers staff and service users to help shape public services. 
 
I am pleased to commend this report to the Cabinet and ask they give it due 
consideration as part of the political leadership they provide this local authority. 
 
 
Councillor Cal Corkery 
Chair, Scrutiny Management Panel  
 
Date: 17 January 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



2 
 

CONTENTS         Page 
 
Aims of the Review       3 
 
Recommendations        3 
 
Background         4 - 5 
 
The Wider Context                     5 
 
The Local Picture        6 
 
Evidence & Conclusions       6 - 12 
 
Integrated Impact Assessment      13  
 
Budgetary and Policy Implications     14 - 15 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 - Scoping Document for the review                            16 
 
Appendix 2 - Introduction to Systems Thinking Presentation      17 - 26 
 
Appendix 3 - Case Study - Solent NHS Sexual Health Service     27- 32 
 
Appendix 4 - Case Study - PCC Green & Clean Team                   33 - 36 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



3 
 

Aims of the Review 
 
The aims of the scrutiny were for the panel to be informed of and to review: 
 

 the current approach to the use of systems thinking in Portsmouth City 
Council; 

 The methodology employed within PCC - to include an explanation of 
interventions, how they work and outcomes; 

 How and why interventions are currently commissioned; and 
 Potential future applications. 

 
Recommendations 
 
Recommend that Cabinet: 
 

i. Recognises and thanks the Systems Development Service for the 
outcomes of their work, which has resulted in significant improvements 
to the customer experience and the efficiency of the services that they 
have assisted; 
 

ii. Recognises and thanks the Systems Development Service for the 
outcomes of their work with partner agencies, which has resulted in 
similar improvements to the customer experience and the efficiency of 
the services that they have assisted;  
 

iii. Recognises that engaging with staff is an embedded part of the 
Systems Thinking methodology.  However, it is requested that the 
methodology is reviewed with a view to identifying and implementing 
any further opportunities that may exist to further bolster or enhance 
this engagement and involvement; 
 

iv. Recognises that the perspective of service users is considered as part 
of the current Systems Thinking methodology. However, it is requested 
that consideration be given to how service users could be more actively 
involved in the process where appropriate; and  
 

v. Invites Cabinet Members to ensure Systems Thinking reviews be 
considered as an option where appropriate should it be identified that a 
process could be improved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



4 
 

Background 
 
The topic for the review and a draft scoping document was considered and agreed 
by the Scrutiny Management Panel on 14 September 2023. 
 
It was understood that the systems thinking methodology had been widely used in 
some parts of PCC to review and redesign services.   
 
The panel agreed that the review be completed via a Task & Finish Group, with a 
draft report to be presented at a formal meeting of the panel in late January or early 
February 2024. 
 
The Task and Finish Group met three times on: 
 
23 November 2023 - An introduction to Systems Thinking at PCC  
(Presentation at Appendix 2) 
 
The Task & Finish Group learnt about the Systems Thinking methodology at PCC, 
how it operated and the role of the Systems Development Service. 
 
List of witnesses/contributors 
 

 James Hill- Director of Housing, Neighbourhoods & Building Services 
 David Adams - Lead Interventionist 
 Eddie Stray - Lead Interventionist 
 Jim Lines - Lead Interventionist 
 Warren Norville - Interventionist 

 
Members present 
 

 Cllr Cal Corkey 
 Cllr Graham Heaney 

 
4 December 2023 - Practical Examples of the use of method at PCC 
Presentations at Appendices 3 and 4 
 
The Task and Finish Group received three case study presentations from senior 
leaders who had commissioned a systems thinking intervention which demonstrated 
how the approach worked in practice.   
 
List of witnesses/contributors 
 

 David Adams - Lead Interventionist 
 Jim Lines - Lead Interventionist 
 Colette Hill - Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) PCC 
 Kaylee Mowatt - Team Manager Community Independence Service (PCC) 
 Clare Scholfield - Clinical Director of Sexual and Reproductive Health, Solent 

NHS Trust 
 
 
 

Page 25



5 
 

Members present 
 

 Cllr Cal Corkey 
 Cllr Graham Heaney 
 Cllr Abdul Kadir 
 Cllr Emily Strudwick 

 
4 January 2024 - Consolidation of the information received and forming of 
recommendations. 
 
The group met to consider the draft report, evaluate the information received during 
the review and ask further questions of officers to enable it to form conclusions and 
recommendations. 
 
List of witnesses/contributors 
 

 James Hill- Director of Housing, Neighbourhoods & Building Services 
 David Adams - Lead Interventionist 
 Jim Lines - Lead Interventionist 

 
Members present 
 

 Cllr Cal Corkey 
 Cllr Graham Heaney 

 
The wider context 
 

 
 
Systems Thinking is applied to a wide range of systems. Examples of its application 
include environmental science and ecology; manufacturing, notably in Japan since 
the 1950s; and in public sector services around the UK and beyond. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



6 
 

The local picture 

 

 
 

 
 
Over time, PCC has been able to internally grow its own capacity to do this work, 
thereby negating the need to use Vanguard and in 2015 set up the Systems 
Development Service. 

   
  The council currently has a small team of internal staff who support this work - the 

Systems Development Service, which sits within the Housing, Neighbourhood, and 
Building Services (HNB) Directorate but is available as a PCC-wide resource and 
also can work with commissioned services and PCC partners.  
 
Evidence and Conclusions 
 
The current approach to the use of systems thinking in Portsmouth City 
Council. 
 

 
 

 
 
It was understood by the Task and Finish Group that there was a misconception that 
some more junior officers viewed the process as a top-down management tool.  The 
service did not believe that this view was widely held and explained that the process 
was very much the opposite of top-down change.  In fact, in some instances, it had 
been managers who had been more resistive, as the process challenged much of 
the thinking that characterises conventional management, and, as a corollary, 
service-design and measurement choices.  
 
The Task and Finish Group learnt that the service had never been offered 
commercially, although there was an unwritten agreement that any requests for 
assistance from organisations with close links to the council would be considered on 
their own merits.  On previous occasions a day rate had been charged. 
 
 

Page 27



7 
 

In terms of how applicable the Systems Thinking model was, it was often said that 
the methodology did not work for all services or processes.  However, with some 
slightly different approaches the model could be, and had been, adapted to a variety 
of service areas.  
 
An example of this breadth is illustrated below: 
 

 Local Authority Housing Repairs 
 Sensory Impairment Service (assistance for those with sight and hearing 

loss) 
 Residents' and businesses' planning applications 
 Food, warmth & hygiene grant scheme for Covid-affected residents 
 IT Service Desk 
 Recovery Hub (substance-misuse service) 
 Anti-Social Behaviour 
 Community Independence Service (occupational therapy-led rehab) 
 Green & Clean 
 Sexual Health Service 

 
How and why interventions are currently commissioned. 
 
Interventions were requested for a number of reasons, although most commonly 
when there was a belief that an existing process was no longer believed to be fit for 
purpose or could be improved upon.  This was the case with the sexual health 
service and the Green & Clean team case studies.  The task and finish group also 
considered a case study in respect of the Community Independence Service (CIS) 
which was a new service that had been designed from the outset with input from 
one of the council's Lead Interventionists. 
 
Green & Clean Team 
 
The Green and Clean systems work started with a intervention in the cleaning 
service following consistent complaints about the quality of the cleaning service. The 
work moved naturally to cover other aspects of estate services including the 
grounds maintenance services and a single purpose led service - Green and Clean 
emerged.  
 
Community Independence Service 
 

 
 

 
 
Sexual Health Service 
 

 

Page 28



8 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
 

 
 

 
 
The effectiveness of the methodology employed within PCC 
 
Engagement during reviews  
 
In terms of employee engagement during a review, the interventionist would liaise 
with the senior leader to ensure that employee representations were representative.  
However, as the service under review was studied from point of customer demand 
to completion, the work carried out by numerous staff members in varying roles was 
observed 'live' and discussed with them first hand. This was a standard element of 
the 'Check' phase. 
 
The Task and Finish Group discussed in detail the importance of all staff feeling 
engaged in any service review and emphasised the need for communication 
channels which ensured that they felt listened to and that their views were fully 
taken into account. 
 
In respect of service user involvement, it was explained that the heart of the process 
involved viewing the service from the customer's perspective, including the 'failure 
demands' they placed on the service (demands arising from a failure to do 
something, or failure do something right for the customer). These demands reveal a 
lot, both implicitly and explicitly, about what matters to a customer.  Service users 
were asked questions and feedback was sought from them to inform the review.   
 
Service user feedback was also sought on proposed changes.  Previous experience 
had demonstrated that a lot of people did not know what changes would be most 
effective at the outset of the intervention and often the most effective changes had 
been different to those suggested by officers and service users at the outset. 
 
The Task and Finish Group learned that to date, service user involvement as part of 
Systems Thinking service reviews had largely taken the form of council officers or 
other professionals trying to understand the service provided from the perspective of 

Page 29



9 
 

the service user. The Task and Finish Group discussed how service users could be 
more actively involved in reviews themselves.  
 
The context of the co-production agenda within Health and Social Care was 
discussed and it was noted there were potential methodological contradictions 
between co-production and Systems Thinking as currently implemented by the local 
authority.  It was suggested such possible tensions could be overcome through the 
inclusion of service users within the intervention review teams.  
 
The Task and Finish Group learnt about end results in respect of the case studies 
scrutinised: 
 
Green & Clean Team 
 
This intervention realised many benefits and embedded a culture of continuous 
improvement.  Decision making about work that was required was put in the hands 
of those on site undertaking the work.  For example, a schedule which involved 
cleaning floors that were already clean but not a door that was dirty no longer 
existed.  Instead, an allocated time was given and elements that needed to be 
cleaned would be. 
 
Some key improvements included: 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 
  

 
 

 
 
 

; 
 
 Bulky refuse - 

 
 
 

 
 
Cultural improvements:  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
Page 30



10 
 

 
 

.  This 
 

 
  

 
Community Independence Service 
 

 
 

 
 
The performance at PCC can be seen in the graph below, derived from a case 
study.  This illustrates that a client of Adult Social Care's had been in regular contact 
with the directorate's services over many years. After 12 months' support from CIS 
in 2019/'20, however, the client no longer contacted the directorate's services 
because he had finally achieved the independent-living outcomes that he had long 
desired.  This helped illustrate the cost-saving impact on the wider health and care 
system. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



11 
 

Contrasts in the operation between a typical Adult Social Care Rehabilitation 
Services and PCC's CIS service are summarised below: 
 

 
 
Sexual Health Service 
 

 
 

  
  
 

 
  
  
  
 

 
  
  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
The Task and Finish Group wished to place on record its thanks to those who had 
taken the time to share their experiences and success using the council's Systems 
Development Service. 

Page 32



12 
 

 
The Task and Finish group was impressed by the outcomes detailed, which had 
delivered significant improvements in service and improvements to the customer 
experience. 
 
Recommendations:  
 
That Cabinet: 
 

i. Recognises and thanks the Systems Development Service for the 
outcomes of their work, which has resulted in significant improvements 
to the customer experience and the efficiency of the services that they 
have assisted; 
 

ii. Recognises and thanks the Systems Development Service for the 
outcomes of their work with partner agencies, which has resulted in 
similar improvements to the customer experience and the efficiency of 
the services that they have assisted; and 
 

iii. Recognises that engaging with staff is an embedded part of the 
Systems Thinking methodology.  However, it is requested that the 
methodology is reviewed with a view to identifying and implementing 
any further opportunities that may exist to further bolster or enhance 
this engagement and involvement. 
 

iv. Recognises that the perspective of service users is considered as part 
of the current Systems Thinking methodology. However, it is requested 
that consideration be given to how service users could be more actively 
involved in the process where appropriate.   

 
Potential future applications 
 
The Task & Finish Group noted that the Systems Thinking methodology used by the 
Systems Development Service could either be utilised in its standard form or tailored 
where necessary and adapted to work successfully with a wide range of different 
services and processes.  
 
At the same time, the Task and Finish Group noted the method may not be best 
suited for all circumstances and it was important that services retained flexibility 
when it comes to dealing with their own situations.  
 
With this in mind, and the successes achieved, the Task & Finish Group was keen 
that the Systems Development Service be considered as an option should 
processes need reviewing. 
 
Recommendation:  

 
v. That Cabinet invites Cabinet Members to ensure Systems Thinking 

reviews be considered as an option where appropriate should it be 
identified that a process could be improved. 

Page 33



13 
 

  
Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
An Integrated Impact Assessment is not required in respect of this report and its 
recommendations, as no new policies or services are proposed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



14 
 

Budget and policy implications of the recommendations 
 

The following table highlights the budgetary and policy implications of the recommendations being presented by the panel: 
 
 Recommendation 

 
Action By Budget & Policy 

Framework 
Resource 
Implications 
 

1 Recognises and thanks the Systems Development 
Service for the outcomes of their work, which has 
resulted in significant improvements to the customer 
experience and the efficiency of the services that they 
have assisted. 
 
 

Cabinet N/A N/A 

2  Recognises and thanks the Systems Development 
Service for the outcomes of their work with partner 
agencies, which has resulted in similar improvements 
to the customer experience and the efficiency of the 
services that they have assisted. 
 

Cabinet N/A N/A 

3 Recognises that engaging with staff is an embedded 
part of the Systems Thinking methodology.  However, 
it is requested that the methodology is reviewed with 
a view to identifying and implementing any further 
opportunities that may exist to further bolster or 
enhance this engagement and involvement. 
 

Systems 
Development 
Service 

N/A None identified 

4 Recognises that the perspective of service users is 
considered as part of the current Systems Thinking 
methodology. However, it is requested that 
consideration be given to how service users could be 

Systems 
Development 
Service 

N/A None identified. 

P
age 35



15 
 

 Recommendation 
 

Action By Budget & Policy 
Framework 

Resource 
Implications 
 

more actively involved in the process where 
appropriate. 
 

5 Invites Cabinet Members to ensure Systems Thinking 
reviews be considered as an option where 
appropriate should it be identified that a process 
could be improved. 
 

Cabinet Members 
and Directors, as 
appropriate and 
based upon need. 

N/A The Systems 
Development 
Service is an 
established team 
within the council 
that is free to be 
commissioned by 
any service area.  
Workloads and 
scheduling of 
interventions are 
managed within 
the team. 
 

P
age 36



APPENDIX 1 

16 

 
Portsmouth City Council Scrutiny Scoping Document 

 
 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

Scrutiny Management Panel 

Topic 
 

The use of 'Systems Thinking' within Portsmouth City 
Council. 
 

Purpose of enquiry 
inc. potential 
outcomes. 
 
(The remit to be clear 
and concise as this 
statement forms the 
backbone of the 
enquiry) 
 

 
To be informed of and to review: 
 

• An overview of the current approach to the use of 
systems thinking in Portsmouth City Council; 

• The methodology employed within PCC - to 
include an explanation of interventions how they 
work and outcomes; 

• How and why interventions are currently 
commissioned; and, 

• Potential future applications. 
 

Reason for 
enquiry 
 

It is understood that the systems thinking methodology 
has been widely used in some parts of PCC to review 
and redesign services and therefore this enquiry will 
explore in what contexts it is most applicable and how 
we are utilising our existing capacity. 
 

Enquiry format 
 
 

Task & Finish Group 
 

Corporate Priority 
linked to 
 

'We will improve lives'  

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 
 

Leader and all Cabinet Members. 

Relevant officers 
 

James Hill Director of HNB, System Development 
Service representatives - Eddie Stray & David Adams 
 

Consultees & 
stakeholders 
 

Services which have been through the systems thinking 
process and where appropriate partner organisations.  

Target Completion 
Date 
 

January 2024 

 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2
pp

17
Page 39

442643
Text Box

442643_1
Text Box

442643_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix 2



18
Page 40

442643_3
Text Box

442643_4
Text Box



19
Page 41

442643_5
Text Box

442643_6
Text Box



20
Page 42

442643_7
Text Box

442643_8
Text Box



21
Page 43

442643_9
Text Box

442643_10
Text Box



22
Page 44

442643_11
Text Box

442643_12
Text Box



23
Page 45

442643_13
Text Box

442643_14
Text Box



24
Page 46

442643_15
Text Box

442643_16
Text Box



25
Page 47

442643_17
Text Box

442643_18
Text Box



26
Page 48

442643_19
Text Box

442643_20
Text Box



27
Page 49

442643_21
Text Box

442643_22
Text Box

442643_23
Typewritten Text
Appendix 3



28
Page 50

442643_24
Text Box

442643_25
Text Box



29
Page 51

442643_26
Text Box

442643_27
Text Box



30
Page 52

442643_28
Text Box

442643_29
Text Box



31
Page 53

442643_30
Text Box

442643_31
Text Box



32
Page 54



33
Page 55

442643_32
Text Box

442643_33
Text Box

442643_34
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4

442643_35
Typewritten Text
   

442643_36
Typewritten Text
  



34
Page 56

442643_37
Text Box

442643_38
Text Box



35
Page 57

442643_39
Text Box

442643_40
Text Box



36
Page 58

442643_41
Text Box

442643_42
Text Box


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2023
	4 Updates on scrutiny recommendations upheld by Cabinet in 2023
	6 Review into the use of 'Systems Thinking' within Portsmouth City Council
	Appendix 1 - SMP Systems Thinking Scoping Document V2
	Appendices2-4_pagenumber


